ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
August 18, 2015

1:10 p. m
MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Lesil McQ@iire, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair

Senator Bill W el echowski
VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Ma Costello
Senator Peter M cciche

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Johnny Ellis

Representati ve Max G uenberg

Representative Matt C aman

Represent ati ve Neal Foster

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair, House Judiciary
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Charisse MIlett

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS | NVATE SAFETY
ADM NI STRATI VE REVI EW

W TNESS REG STER

DEAN W LLI AMS, Special Assistant to Governor \al ker

Al aska Departnent of Corrections Inmate Safety Review

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provided an overview of an inpending
adm nistrative review on the Al aska Departnent of Corrections
regarding i nmate safety.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 10: 23 PM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- August 18, 2015



CHAIR LESIL MCGQURE called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Present at the call to
order was Senator Wel echowski and Chair MCuire.

OVERVI EW  THE ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS | NVATE SAFETY
ADM NI STRATI VE REVI EW

1:11: 00 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE expl ai ned that the Senate Judiciary Commttee wl|
hear an overview from Dean WIIlians, Special Assistant to
Governor Wl ker, who wll begin an admnistrative review on the
Al aska Departnent of Corrections (DOC).

She noted that the succeeding Joint Judiciary Conmttee neeting

wi |l hear about prison costs and reform She explained that the
Joint Judiciary Conmittee neeting will include individuals who
will provide their perspective on how the justice system has

been reformed in other states. She added that she appreciated
the Pew Charitable Trusts for their partnering with Al aska to
address prison costs and reform

She wel comed Senator Johnny Ellis, Representative Max G uenberg,
and Representative Ws Keller to the neeting. She acknow edged
the famly nenbers of Davon Mosley and wel coned retired Justice
Al ex Bryner, Al aska Supreme Court.

She noted that the Senate Judiciary Commttee in Mrch had
initiated the process of trying to receive tapes and files
related to the deaths that have occurred in the DOC. She noted
that the conmttee has addressed specific cases, including the
2014 death of Davon Mosely. She revealed that the governor had
asked to nmeet with her |ast week and noted that M. WIIlians was
also in attendance. She added that she spoke with DOC officers
as well. She summarized that the governor nmade it very clear
that he cares very deeply about the DOC deaths and noted that he
was approached throughout his gubernatorial canpaign by many of
the corrections officers as well as the famlies of those who
have lost |oved ones while serving tine in the prison system
She stated that the governor was pleased to join the |egislature
in the investigation to look into the DOC deat hs and what can be
done to prevent them in the future. She detailed that the
governor has given his full support and has asked M. WIlIlians
to be a special investigator on the DOC investigation.

1:13:11 PM

DEAN W LLI AM5,  Speci al | nvestigator, Alaska Departnent of
Corrections Inmate Safety Adm nistrative Review, Ofice of the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- August 18, 2015



Governor, Juneau, Alaska, stated that the Senate Judiciary
Commttee, the legislature, the public and nany others have
expressed deep concern about the operations of DOC concerning
somre of the deaths and sone of the unfortunate incidents that
have occurred. He asserted that the Governor's Ofice as well as
t he governor are concerned as well and are doi ng sonethi ng about
it.

1:13: 39 PM

MR. WLLI AVS expl ai ned that he would detail how the decision was
made for the DOC review He related that he was involved in
state government for 31 years and canme out of retirenent to work
for the governor as a special assistant. He disclosed that when
t he di scussion about DOC occurred a few weeks after starting, he
put his name forward to of fer assistance.

He explained that the investigation is the result of public
concerns regarding recent deaths and the circunstances around
certain deaths in DOC. He set forth that the governor and he
believe that public trust in an agency requires telling the
truth. He asserted that the Ofice of the Governor is commtted
to finding out what the truth is.

He specified that the investigation will reveal what is going
right, what is not going right, and what recomendations m ght
be done to fix things. He remarked that the hunman toll and the
financial costs are significant when an agency is having
trouble, but asserted that the intent is not to pick on DOC or
any agency.

He said the DOC review is really getting a look at the big
picture by looking at specific incidents. He detailed that the
review is being done by hinself as well as Joe Hanlon, a retired
FBI agent who runs his own special investigation shop. He noted
that M. Hanlon was recomended by Mark Mew, Anchorage Chief of
Police. He said Chief Mew is a qualified person who will assist
with the review as well.

He specified that a conprehensive report will be submtted to
the governor after a two to three nonth review process. He noted
that the governor will provide the Judiciary Commttee with an

executive summary that may have individual nanmes redacted in
order to protect people who are comng forward and telling the
truth. He stated that a final report will be provided to the
public and the |egislature.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- August 18, 2015



MR. WLLIAMS said he asked that all DOC enployees talk to him
confidentially; in other words, no supervisory questioning of
people that talk to hinself or M. Hanlon. He added that little
or no visitation notices will be provided to any of the DOC
facilities that he will visit. He asserted that he did not want
DOC facilities preparing or cleaning things up. He stated that
his intent is to see how the DOC facilities are operating in
order to see what is going well and what is not going well.

1:16: 44 PM
He said inmate deaths occurring inside DOC facilities wll
clearly be one of the areas of focus. He added that the review

will look at restraints, abuse, neglect, suicides, and hom cides
within the last two years. He revealed that specific cases
beyond two years wll also be reviewed, including the Israel

Keyes case due to its national attention as well as cases that
he is not at liberty to reveal.

He said the reviewwi || also address the foll ow ng:

* (Operational confidence issues.

* Docunentation and accurate reporting.

e Appropriate review of a nmmjor incidence.
* Appropriate personnel investigations.

« Strategy towards inprovenent.

e The utilization of national agencies that help corrections
depart nments.

« Staffing concerns.
 Enpl oyee noral e.
« DOC s culture.

1:18: 01 PM

He asserted that any review is inperfect. He said the reviews
goal is to get a snapshot and not a dissection of what is going
on in the departnent. He avowed that he approaches the review
wth great humlity knowng that he and M. Hanlon are human
bei ngs; they are going to do their best to tell the truth, but
know t hat sonething nay be m ssed.

He reveal ed that he has already net with DOC enpl oyees and noted
their dedication. He said DOC enployees are good folks that
really want to do a good job and the state is fortunate to have
a work force that has that val ue.

MR. WLLIAVS pointed out that the review is not a blame-gane
from the Governor's Ofice and certainly not from him He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- August 18, 2015



asserted that the review is about finding out what happened, how
DOC arrived at the current point, and really not being afraid to
tell the truth. He said he has discussed the issues with his
staff. He avowed that his focus is not to get soneone in
trouble, but to find out what happened first. He noted that if
sonet hing should happen regarding personnel issues; that was
another level. He reiterated that the intent of the reviewis to
figure out what happened first. He asserted that he and the
governor are commtted to understanding the problem first before
recommendi ng a fix.

1:19: 45 PM

He pointed out that the succeeding Joint Judiciary neeting with
the Pew Charitable Trusts regarding justice reform was a
different process, but with a very common goal. He set forth
that the goal is to inprove the justice system as well as help
i nprove DOC. He affirmed that reform work that reduces
incarceration and recidivism is good under any sky, but noted
t hat developing sonme margins when trying to nake inprovenents
with an agency by providing some breathing room was even nore
valuable in ternms of going forward wth recomendations or
i npl ementation. He summarized that the Pew Charitable Trusts
effort and the justice reform effort are critical components in
the state's future and will certainly help the review in terns
of DOQC.

He announced that he and M. Hanlon welcone phone calls or
meetings with the legislature and staff. He said he and M.
Hanlon are open to any feedback in addition to addressing
specific incidences.

1:21:53 PM
CHAI R MCGUI RE wel comed Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair of
t he House Judiciary Commttee.

She pointed out that the Senate Judiciary Conmttee held a
hearing in March that addressed DOC i nmate deaths. She specified
that the hearing was conversational with a variety of fol ks. She
noted that <corrections officers testified to things they
wi tnessed and problens they felt were occurring with respect to
training and the prisoner to corrections officer ratio. She
added that DOC Comm ssioner Taylor addressed specifics with the
i nmat e deat hs.

CHAIR MCQU RE revealed that she had a discussion with M.

Wl lians about the commttee being denied access to information,
tapes, and docunents relating to the DOC inmate deaths, which

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- August 18, 2015



ultimately started the march down the path for a review She

said a tape fromthe commttee's March hearing will be submtted
to M. Wllianms for his investigation. She noted that
Representative LeDoux will have things that she would like to
address wth M. Wlliams as well. She stated that her
understanding is M. WIllians wll have access to all of DOC s
information. She asserted that allowing M. WIlIlians access is
important. She specified that M. WIlians will have access to
surveillance tapes, medi cal files, docunents relating to
pri soner deaths, homcides, suicides, and all of the other

t hi ngs being investigated.

1:23:48 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if DOC or the Departnment of Public
Saf ety investigates prisoner deaths.

MR WLLIAMS answered that the Departnent of Public Safety
investigates deaths inside state facilities, including DOC. He
noted that his job is to assess the DOC death review process,
how long the review process has been going on, and what the
policy is around death investigations inside DOC facilities. He
added that personnel investigations will assess if DOC enpl oyees
are following death review policy and if sonmebody is not doing
their job. He asserted that three things should be occurring: a
Department of Public Safety investigation, a |aw enforcenent
officer's investigation, and DOC s own internal review He added
that if appropriate, a personnel investigation should also be
going on at the sane tine.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked who should conduct personnel
i nvestigations and shoul d t he DCC conduct per sonnel
i nvesti gations.

MR. WLLIAMS replied that personnel investigations are handl ed
differently by departnments. He explained that DOC has soneone
inside that does nobst of the personnel investigations. He
remarked that he did not want to nmke additional coments, but
not ed that DOC personnel investigations are being revi ewed.

1:25: 55 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI pointed out that M. WIIlianms addressed
concerns with staffing issues and prisoner death issues. He
stated that the issues addressed were inportant and obviously
critical. He commented that he was a little unclear as to what
M. WIllianms' exact focus is for the DOC investigation. He asked
if M. WIIlians' investigation will focus on one particular
death, deaths in general, or on the overall corrections system

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- August 18, 2015



MR. WLLIAMS answered that the investigation will first |ook at
the last two years of deaths, suicides, and any other unnatura

deaths or natural deaths. He added that the investigation wll
review the last two suicides, including the Israel Keyes case

He noted that Israel Keyes is a significant case for what it
nmeans to the departnent. He opined that the suicide cases are a
maj or item and the reason for the investigation, but added that
there are other peripheral things that are becom ng inportant
like policy and review issues. He stated that when nmajor
i nci dences occur, questions should be asked as to how, why, and
is there sonething deficient in the way DOC is operating. He

sunmarized that the review will look at the death incidents as
the major focus point, but realizing that around the nmgjor
incidents are a lot of other things that include policy

devel opment, training, staffing issues, and how all of those
t hi ngs cone into play.

1:28: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER pointed out t hat a lot of t he
investigation's goals and purposes are aligned with the Crim nal
Justice Commission's efforts for the |legislature's ongoing
interest in looking at justice reform He noted that SB 91
addresses justice reform He asked M. WIllians to keep track of
what the Justice Commission is doing and to nake them aware of
the investigation's big-picture findings. He remarked that M.
WIllians has a different perspective and could be very val uable
for the Justice Commission in bringing back recommendations to
the legislature. He stated that M. WIllians' investigation is
inportant to the Judiciary Commttees. He requested that M.
WIllianms incorporate within his report, as the governor allows,
a broader picture on DCC s culture and incarceration
effecti veness.

MR. WLLI AMS acknow edged Representative Keller's request.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. WIllianms to provide contact
information and noted that he will have a discussion with him at
the appropriate tine.

CHAIR MCGQU RE said the Legislature has to have a firm
understanding of what it is going to take to reform the current
system and that is the reason why she told the governor that it
is inportant to work together.

CHAIR MCGUI RE added that other areas have been specifically
flagged for M. WIllians to |look at during his review nentally

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- August 18, 2015



il people that end wup in prison, offenders that are
incarcerated under the influence due to drug and or al cohol
addictions, and the disproportionally high incarceration of
Al aska Natives and African Americans.

She noted that she has addressed inmates with nental illness in
t he past and specified that the review address the foll ow ng:

e DOC protocols related to nmental health treatnment.

* Corrections officer training for nentally ill inmates.

« Dispatcher training regarding nental health check calls as
with the Davon Msl ey case and sone ot hers.

* Dispatcher recordings for a person that is suffering froma
nment al breakdown.

e Inmate nental health diagnosis.
e Inmate nedication identification.

e Protocol for inmates receiving nedication from a famly
menber .

e Protocol for a nental health screening once an inmate is
i nsi de.

e Corrections officer training for a firm background in
under st andi ng schi zophrenia or bipolar disease and how it
mani fests itself.

She said detoxification is another area with a high nunber of
those that are incarcerated in Al aska suffering from al cohol and
or drug addiction. She asked what the protocols were for taking
care of an individual's health aspects during a substance
related withdrawal when a person is under the influence of a
substance during an arrest.

She pointed out that mnority treatnent has been flagged in both
the area of the state's First Nations people and African
Anerican citizens. She said she is hopeful that the Pew
Charitable Trusts is going to |ook at why the Al aska Natives and
African Anmerican nunbers are disproportionately high when
related to the populations they represent. She added that
another issue relates to staff training on treatnment, racial
bias, and profiling of Alaska Natives and African Anmericans
behi nd bars.

1: 33: 55 PM

CHAI R MCGUI RE wel conmed Representati ve VAt t Cl aman,
Representative Bob Lynn, and Representative Neal Foster to the
comittee neeting.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- August 18, 2015



She asked when the Judiciary Conmittee will receive a report.

MR WLLIAMS replied that he told the governor that an update
will be provided in two to three nonths. He added that one tine
frame caveat pertains to addressing sonmething that materializes
during the review process. He said he knows the governor has
given himthe liberty to run things dow that are still hanging
out there and he did not want to | eave sonethi ng hangi ng.

CHAIR MCGQUIRE asked M. Wllians if he would be confortable
com ng back before the Joint Judiciary Commttee to present his
report.

MR. WLLIAMS answered yes. He noted that he had spoken with the
governor and he is comritted to making sure that the Judiciary
Commttee is in on what the review finds. He asserted that he
does not want to submt his report until he gets "to the end of
the day." He reiterated that he welcomes coments and dial og
with commttee nmenbers and their staff.

CHAIR MCGQU RE thanked M. WIllians for his testinony. She
t hanked the Davon Mosley famly for attending the neeting as
wel | .

1:35: 52 PM
SENATOR COGHI LL j oi ned conmitt ee.

ADJ QURNVENT

1: 37:18 PM
The neeting was adjourned at 1:37 p. m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- August 18, 2015



